




CLARKSVILLE CHARTER SCHOOL 
                                                               
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                  

 
Regular Board Meeting – Clarksville Charter School 
May 21, 2020 – 7:00pm 
7006 Rossmore Lane, El Dorado Hills, Ca. 95762 
 
 
Attendance: Emily Allen, Katie Burwell, Keri Dalebout - Teleconference 
Absent: None 
Also Present: Jenell Sherman, Kathryn Fagundo, Darlington Ahaiwe - Teleconference 
 
 
Call to Order: 
 Emily Allen called the meeting to order at 7:06pm. 
 
 
Approval of the Agenda: 
 Emily Allen motioned to approve the Agenda. Katie Burwell seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 
 
Public Comments: 
 None. 
 
 
Closed Session: 
 Emily Allen motioned to enter into closed session at 7:09pm. Keri Dalebout seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 Emily Allen motioned to end the Closed Session at 7:16pm. Keri Dalebout seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 There was no action taken in Closed Session. 
 
 
Executive Director’s Report: 
 The Board of Directors received the Executive Director’s Report on: 

• School Closure due to Covid-19 Updates  
• 2020-2021 Enrollment Updates  
• Student Achievement  
• Board Member Vacancies  

 
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the April Board Meeting Minutes: 

Emily Allen motioned to approve the April Board Meeting Minutes. Katie Burwell seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the April Financials: 
 Emily Allen motioned to approve the April Financials. Keri Dalebout seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 
 



CLARKSVILLE CHARTER SCHOOL 
                                                               
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                  
 

Discussion and Potential Action on the COVID-19 Plans (Executive Order: N-56-20 Operations 
Written Report): 

The board was presented the COVID-19 Plans and provided feedback. No action was taken. 
 

 
Discussion and Potential Action on the Invoices over $100,000: 
 Emily Allen motioned to approve the Invoices over $100,000. Keri Dalebout seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the Confirmation of Retention of Counsel – Engagement 
Letter: 

Emily Allen motioned to approve the Confirmation of Retention of Counsel – Engagement 
Letter. Keri Dalebout seconded. 

 -Unanimous. 
 
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the Salary Schedules: 
 Emily Allen motioned to approve the Salary Schedules. Keri Dalebout seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the Executive Director Evaluation: 

Emily Allen motioned to approve the Executive Director Evaluation. Katie Burwell seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
  
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the Suicide Prevention Policy: 
 Emily Allen motioned to approve the Suicide Prevention Policy. Keri Dalebout seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the Suspension and Expulsion Policy: 

Emily Allen motioned to approve the Suspension and Expulsion Policy. Katie Burwell 
seconded. 

 -Unanimous. 
 
 
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the Field Trip Policy: 
 Emily Allen motioned to approve the Field Trip Policy. Keri Dalebout seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the Vendor Agreements: 
 Emily Allen motioned to approve the Vendor Agreements. Keri Dalebout seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 
 



CLARKSVILLE CHARTER SCHOOL 
                                                               
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                  
 

Announcement of Next Regular Scheduled Board Meeting: 
 The next Regular Scheduled Board Meeting will be June 18, 2020 at 7:00pm. 
 
 
Adjournment: 
 Emily Allen motioned to adjourn at 8:42pm. Katie Burwell seconded. 
 -Unanimous. 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Bryanna Brossman 
 
 
Noted by: 
 
 
 
Board Secretary 
  
 



CLARKSVILLE CHARTER SCHOOL 
                                                               
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                  

 
Special Board Meeting - Clarksville Charter School 
 May 21, 2020 – 8:00 pm 
7006 Rossmore Lane, El Dorado Hills, CA 95762 

 
 

Attendance: Emily Allen, Katie Burwell, Keri Dalebout - Teleconference 
Absent: None 
Also present: Janelle Sherman, Kathryn Fagundo - Teleconference 
 
 
Call to Order: 
 Emily Allen called the meeting to order at 8:27pm. 
 
 
Approval of the Agenda:  
  Emily Allen motioned to approve the Agenda. Keri Dalebout seconded. 

-Unanimous. 
 
 
Public Comments: 
 None. 
 
 
Discussion and Potential Action on the Charter School Capital Acknowledgment Resolutions for 
the Sale of Additional Receivables: 

Emily Allen motioned to approve the Resolution for the Sale of Additional Receivables. Katie 
Burwell seconded. 
-Unanimous. 

 
 
Adjournment: 
 Emily Allen motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:29pm. Keri Dalebout seconded.  
 -Unanimous. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Bryanna Brossman 
 
 
Noted by: 
 
 
 
Board Secretary 
 
 















































































































































































































 
Role/Salary Placements  

• All positions are classified according to the corresponding role and/or salary placements based 
on the required set of skills, education, effort, and responsibility of the job assignment as 
indicated in the specific job description.  All positions may be reclassified as necessary by the 
Executive Director or designee. Some hard-to staff positions may be compensated out of the 
salary schedule as approved by the Executive Director.  

Advancements on Pay Scale 
• An advancement on the Pay Scale is the placement of an employee from a position in a lower 

salary placement to a position in a higher salary placement and will be determined on the same 
basis and factors articulated herein.  

 
Lateral Transfer     

 
• A lateral transfer is the movement of an employee from one position to another within the 

same salary placement. The employee may continue to progress in the same salary placement 
as experience in the position is accumulated.  Prior experience will not be re-evaluated for 
purposes of placement or advancement in the new salary placement.   

Partial Assignments  
• In cases where a classified employee has been given multiple assignments (e.g. a SPED 

coordinator with partial ESL duties), the employee will be placed on the salary schedule (or 
salary placement) with the higher salary.  

Reassignments  
• Employees approved to voluntarily transfer to a position in a lower placement on the salary 

scale, if applicable, will be placed in the new salary placement, and the salary will be 
calculated as it is in the new placement or schedule  

• When an employee is reassigned for any reason to a position in a lower salary placement, the 
employee’s salary will be lowered during the next payroll cycle, or when determined by the 
Executive Director to avoid disruption so long as it is not earlier than the next payroll period.  

Rehires  
• A former employee who returns to a position similar to the role held prior to separation will be 

placed on the salary scale as follows: 



• The converted grade and step of individuals who separated employment will be 
identified for appropriate entry placement on the salary scale. 

• All applicable work experience earned outside of Clarksville Charter Schools, 
subsequent to separation, may be identified and used for credit as equivalent 
experience in accordance with the creditable years of service as described herein. 

 
Experience – Nonexempt Employees  

• Each nonexempt employee will be placed on the salary schedule based on their years of 
relevant experience.  Although non-exempt employees may be paid a monthly salary (paid on 
a semi-monthly basis), all non-exempt salaried employees will be paid for all hours worked 
and are eligible for overtime in accordance with applicable law.  Employees should receive 
approval from their supervisor before working overtime.   

• The evaluation of prior experience will be made by the Executive Director or his/her designee. 
The following criteria, among others, may be considered in evaluation of prior experience:  

• The number of days worked in a year must be at least 180 days as a full time 
employee  

• The percentage of days worked  
• Position held  
• Type of the organization and accreditation  

• Experience including secretarial, clerical, teaching, professional, and substitute experience 
may be credited.   

• Each year of experience may be 1 YEAR in the schedule.   
• The starting salary of a new employee may exceed the salary of a current employee in the 

same position based on their years of experience.  
• Experience may be earned in other districts or other companies. 
• The Executive Director or his or her designee may adjust a rehired non-exempt employee’s 

placement on the pay scale as appropriate based on the employee’s accumulated relevant 
experience following the employee’s separation from the School, which may result in a higher 
or lower placement on the scale than the employee would have otherwise been placed had the 
employee been continuously employed. Adjustments to an employee’s salary may be made in 
any subsequent school year. 

Additional Supplement Bonus (“Supplement”): 
The Executive Director may recommend a Supplement for classified staff members as set forth in this 
section.  

• A Executive Director, in his or her sole discretion, shall determine what duties shall be 
supplemented based upon the operational needs of the school. 

• A supplement is not automatic, and can be provided at the discretion and approval of the 
Executive Director, based on additional work beyond the regular work responsibilities. 

• A supplement will be paid to the employee in accordance with the schedule provided by the 
School at the time of supplement award.  

• The supplemental award shall not exceed $35,000 or 50% of annual salary. 
• All supplements awarded are paid for the performance of duties beyond the regular work day 

and normal job responsibilities and are not approved solely on the basis of position 
classification or previous supplement payment. Additional time spent fulfilling job duties does 
not constitute a basis for compensation beyond the classified staff members' regular salary.  

• Classified staff member’s supplements will be set forth in a Supplement Performance Order. 
The Supplement Performance Order Request shall be completed and signed by the classified 
staff member and the Executive Director prior to performing the supplemental duties.  







1. Employees should submit the form to their Executive Director or their Supervisor, if the Executive 
Director is unavailable. 

2. The Executive Director should first review the form. If they approve, they must sign the form and submit 
it to HR. 

3. HR and the CFO or designee must also review the form and decide whether to grant the employee’s 
request in consultation with the Executive Director. If they approve, HR must create an agreement form 
for the pay advance and repayment terms taking any applicable taxes into account. This agreement must 
be signed by HR, the CFO or designee and the employee and include relevant dates. 

4. HR must forward the signed agreement to the accounting department. The accounting department will 
generally give employees their advance pay through check or bank transfer within a week, if possible, 
after receiving the form. 

If the request is denied, the Executive Director must inform the employee. 

The advance must be paid back within one year of the initial payment to the employee, subject to 
applicable law.  If there is a problem with meeting the requirement then the employee must sign an 
agreement that moves them toward quickly meeting that requirement. 

NOTICE TO BOARD  

The Board must be informed by the Executive Director if an employee resigns prior to repaying their 
payroll advance. 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
Clarksville Charter School (“Charter School”) is focused on “Personalized Learning”, a 
philosophy that puts every student first by supporting them in honoring and exploring their unique 
skills, special gifts, talents, and aspirations.  In furtherance of this philosophy and Charter School’s 
educational mission, families and Charter School staff together carefully select educational items 
and services for students to fit their goals and education plan.   

The purpose of the Clarksville Charter School Governing Board approving the Educational Vendor 
Policies and Procedures is to accomplish the key requirements detailed in this policy, including: 

1. The Executive Director (as defined below) must approve all vendors before they can 
provide educational items or services to students.   

2. The Homeschool Teacher (as defined below) and Executive Director (as defined below) 
must approve all requests for educational items or services to ensure they are aligned with 
the charter petition and student’s personalized learning curriculum.   

3. No family may spend, or obligate the Charter School to spend, any Charter School monies 
on educational items and services.  Charter School is responsible for making purchases of 
approved educational items and services. 

VENDOR APPLICATION AND APPROVAL 

1. Educational Vendor Applications: Charter School contracts with educational vendors 
who provide educational enrichment services (e.g., in-person educational activities) and 
items (e.g., textbooks, workbooks, etc.) to students.  Vendors must submit an application 
to Charter School detailing critical information such as qualifications and services.  Charter 
School shall carefully review Vendor’s application, website, available references, social 
media, and other pertinent information.  

The Executive Director or his/her designee (“Executive Director”) must approve all 
educational vendors and enter into an agreement with approved vendors before a vendor 
can provide any educational services to students.  The Executive Director may reject a 
vendor applicant or terminate vendor services for any reason.  The Executive Director may 
delegate his/her authority to approve vendors as necessary to promote the effective 
operations of the Charter School.   For educational products, parents may submit requests 
specific educational products from a particular vendor (e.g., pencils from an online store).  
The Charter School’s approval of the educational product request (approval process 
described below) serves as vendor approval. 

2. Vendor Guidelines: The Executive Director is responsible for approving vendors, and 
must ensure the vendor meets guidelines, including, but not limited to the following: 

Educational Vendor Policies and Procedures 



● Vendor must have the qualifications, skills and, if applicable, the certification and 
licenses necessary to perform the requested services in a competent and professional 
manner.   

● Vendor conducts background checks pursuant to Education Code section 45125.1 to 
ensure Vendor (if an individual), its employees, and agents who interact with students 
have not committed a serious or violent felony. 

● Vendor services and/or products must be non-sectarian. Vendor’s services and products 
must not discriminate on the basis of disability, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation or any other 
protected basis under California law. 

● Vendor must maintain adequate levels of insurance for its educational services.   

● Vendor must not be a private school offering services through a part-time program 
(e.g., after school programs) or a parent-organized group (also known as “co-op”).  

● Vendors must qualify as independent contractors in accordance with applicable laws.  
This is determined by the Executive Director based on vendor representations and 
vetting by the Charter School or its service provider. 

3. Vendor Agreement: Once the Executive Director has approved a vendor, the vendor and 
Charter School must enter into a vendor agreement before the school can order educational 
services from the vendor.  Considering families may have one-off requests for educational 
products, a vendor agreement may not be necessary for the Charter School to purchase 
educational products (e.g., ordering pencils from an online store for one student).  The 
vendor agreement will include protections set forth in this policy, including, but not limited 
to requiring background checks for staff interacting with students, prohibitions on non-
sectarian/discriminatory items and services, insurance and indemnification provisions, and 
more.   

REQUESTING EDUCATIONAL SERVICES AND ITEMS 

1. Requests: Students make requests for educational services and items through the 
Enrichment ordering system.  The Enrichment ordering system is accessible on the Charter 
School website and features a list of approved educational vendors.  All requests for 
educational services and items must: (i) first be approved the credentialed teacher assigned 
to supervise student’s independent study (“Homeschool Teacher”); and (ii) approved by 
the Executive Director or designee.  The Executive Director may delegate his/her authority 
to approve parent requests for educational items and services as necessary to promote the 
effective operations of the Charter School. 
The Executive Director can deny any request for educational items or services in his or her 
sole discretion for any reason.  Families cannot directly purchase, or obligate the Charter 
School to purchase, any educational items or service without Charter School’s approval.   
The Charter School establishes a planning amount for students for educational items and 
services per full school year. Parents and students are not guaranteed to receive any 
educational items and services up to and equal to this planning amount, as a Homeschool 



Teacher and the Executive Director must approve all requests.  The planning amount is 
also not a mandatory cap limiting the Charter School’s ability provide necessary 
educational services to students (e.g., pursuant to a student’s individualized education 
program).  The Charter School developed this planning amount to help ensure the school 
provides educational items and services aligned with its budget and to help ensure fair and 
equal treatment of students, to the extent consistent with individual needs.  Parents and 
students are not given access to direct or encumber planning amount funds. Parents are 
encouraged to work with their Homeschool Teacher to develop multi-year plans for their 
children because their educational needs may vary from year-to-year.  While the Charter 
School does not guarantee any specific amount of funding for educational services and 
items, a multi-year plan empowers the Charter School and families to develop a 
personalized course of study suited to their children’s needs and the Charter School to 
effectively budget for all students. The planning amount cannot be transferred to any other 
student.   
The Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director are responsible for granting requests and 
allocating educational products and services in a nondiscriminatory manner.  The Charter 
School shall seek to purchase cost-effective educational items and services.  The 
Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director shall ensure purchased educational items and 
services meet the following requirements:  

● From approved vendors only. 

● Support the requesting student’s personalized curriculum and education plan.   

● Must be aligned with State standards, student’s course of study (e.g., requested amount 
of fabric corresponds to length of course/project), or student’s independent study 
master written agreement.  

● From a vendor who is not related to the Charter School family requesting the 
educational items or services and otherwise does not present conflict of interest 
concerns.  

2. Core Subject Curriculum: The Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director must ensure 
students access all necessary “core subject curriculum” – education items/services 
necessary for the student to complete his/her State standards-aligned course of study – 
before approving any extracurricular activities or supplemental educational or enrichment 
items. Core subject curriculum includes physical curriculum like McGraw Hill Textbook 
Set and associated workbooks and access to digital educational platforms such as 
Odysseyware or StongMind Digital Learning.   

3. Enrichment Certificates: After the Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director approve 
a request through the Enrichment ordering system, an “Enrichment Certificate” is created 
by Charter School.  Charter School requests educational services and items from approved 
vendors through Enrichment Certificates.  If necessary, Charter School may use an 
approved vendor’s purchase order form in lieu of an Enrichment Certificate.  
Certificates/purchase orders should include important information, including the requested 
educational services, dates of services, Enrichment Certificate/PO Number, and approved 
cost for services.  
Vendors must receive an approved Enrichment Certificate/purchase order before providing 
educational services or items to students.  Vendors must receive the Enrichment 
Certificate/purchase order and provide the requested education services before submitting 
an invoice to Charter School.   



4. Prohibited Requests: Charter School students can only request education services and 
items available in the Enrichment ordering system. Homeschool Teachers and Executive 
Directors will only approve requests for educational items and services that are educational 
quality (e.g., not top of the line).  Only basic items and services may be approved.  Charter 
School will not approve educational items or services beyond what is needed to meet a 
student’s learning objectives.  

The following is a non-exhaustive list of prohibited items and services: 

● Backpacks 

● Amusement park tickets 

● Video game hardware or software  

● Excessive quantities of any item or service (e.g., beyond student’s course of study). 

● Non-educational household items (e.g., storage containers, organizational items (large 
or small items), picture frames, etc.)  

● Bicycles, tricycles, scooters, skateboards, rollerblades, roller skates, wagons, etc. 

● Live animals or animal supplies small insects/amphibians/worms as a part of a science 
class. Certain kit and supplies can be ordered by a student (e.g., praying mantis, 
caterpillars, ladybugs, or silkworms to study; ant farms; or tadpoles) 

● Top of the line musical instruments (where more reasonably-priced options are 
available) 

● Educational items and services must be nonsectarian   

● Taxis/Uber/Lyft rides and other transportation costs 
5. Educational Field Trips: While families are prohibited from requesting trips to non-

educational venues, they can request to join educational field trips through the enrichment 
ordering system (e.g., museums, aquariums, libraries, etc.) The Executive Director and 
Homeschool Teacher shall carefully scrutinize each request to ensure the requested 
educational field trip aligns with the student’s course of study and furthers their education 
and that all participants are necessary for student transportation, safety and supervision. 
In light of the Charter School providing an independent study program, it is anticipated 
that a parent/guardian may need to serve as chaperone and transport their children for 
approved educational field trips.  The Charter School Board finds funding the actual, 
reasonable, and necessary costs for a chaperone to access the educational field trip (e.g., 
ticket to museum, embedded transportation costs) furthers public school purposes where 
necessary or desirable to allow students to participate in educational field trips.   

6. Student and Family Responsibilities: 
A. Returning Educational Products: All educational items requested through the 

Enrichment ordering system are the property of the Charter School.  This includes any 
technology, textbooks, and other educational items.  Families must return all 
educational products upon disenrollment or upon request by the Executive Director or 
Homeschool Teacher.  In accordance with applicable law, parents are responsible for 
to replace lost, stolen, damage, or otherwise unreturned educational items. 

• Certain items are “consumable”, meaning they are not functional after use (e.g., 
workbooks).  These items can be discarded by families after use.  



B. Damaged or Lost Educational Items:  Parents are responsible for replacing lost, stolen, 
damage, or otherwise unreturned educational items to the extent allowed under 
applicable law. If an educational item is damaged, parents must immediately contact 
the Homeschool Teacher for support.   

Required Attendance:  Students must attend regular learning period meetings with their 
Homeschool Teacher to discuss progress, turn in quality work samples, and complete their 
Student Activity Logs (Attendance Logs) in order to make requests for extracurricular 
educational activities (e.g., non-core curriculum items) through enrichment ordering 
system. 

 
7. Questions: If Charter School families have any questions about this policy or how to make 

requests for educational items and services, please contact Executive Director, Jenell 
Sherman at jenell@inspireschools.org. 

 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
The Governing Board of Clarksville Charter School recognizes that school-sponsored trips are an 
important component of a student’s development.  These types of trips supplement and enrich the 
homeschooling and classroom learning experience.  In addition, field trips encourage new interests 
among students, make them more aware of community resources, and help them relate their school 
experiences to the outside world.  School-sponsored field trips may be conducted in connection 
with the Clarksville Charter School’s course of study or school-related social, educational, cultural, 
athletic, school band activities or other extracurricular or cocurricular activities.   
 
The purpose of the Clarksville Charter School Governing Board approving this Field Trip Policy 
is to accomplish the following:   
 

1. Outline the Requirements for a Field Trip 
2. Explain Supervision, Chaperone and Guest Policies 
3. Explain Accommodation Options for Special Education Students 
4. Identify Student and Family Responsibly While Attending Field Trips 
5. Identify Transportation Options for Field Trip Attendance 
 

 
1. Requirements for a Field Trip: No field trips may be made to locations, activities, or 

programs where students will be treated unfairly based on disability, gender, gender identity, 
gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other 
characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Penal Code section 
422.55, including immigration status, equal rights, and opportunities in the educational 
institutions of the state.   

 
School-sponsored trips are those that are single-day, community based or those that are 
specifically approved by the Governing Board of Clarksville Charter School (such as multi-
day trips, or those costing the Clarksville Charter School in excess of $250 per pupil).  The 
Executive Director of Clarksville Charter School shall establish a process for approving a staff 
member’s request to conduct a school-sponsored trip that fall outside the limitations of this 
section.  When planning trips, staff shall consider student safety, objectives of instruction, the 
most effective use of instructional time, school and student expense, and transportation and 
supervision requirements.  Executive Directors may exclude from the trip any student whose 
presence on the trip would pose a safety or disciplinary risk. 

 
All field trips are voluntary, and no student is required to attend any given field trip.  A 
student’s ability to attend any field trip is limited by the amount of enrichment funds available 
for that student.  The teacher of records is responsible for mapping out a child’s field trip plan 
for the year to enhance the child’s educational plan.   

 
2. Field Trip Supervision: Given the need for adequate supervision of the students attending 

Field Trip Policy 



school-sponsored trips and given the nature of the educational program offered by Clarksville 
Charter School, if applicable, Clarksville Charter School will pay for the costs of admission 
for one chaperone for each four (4) children in a family and enrolled in Clarksville Charter 
School.  If applicable, Clarksville Charter School will pay for the costs of admission for an 
additional chaperone for additional children in a family and enrolled in Clarksville Charter 
School in excess of four (up to eight).  Children in a family means children living, part- or full-
time, with a parent/guardian, irrespective of adoptive status or marital status of the 
parents/guardians.  The funds used to pay for the chaperone as allowed in this paragraph shall 
be instructional funds available to each family. 

 
Families are limited to one school-sponsored overnight field trip per year with admission paid 
for one chaperone using enrichment funds.  Clarksville Charter School will not provide the 
cost of admission for any chaperones for vendor trips and independent enrichment trips.   

 
It is the responsibility of parents/guardians to ensure proper supervision over their children 
enrolled in Clarksville Charter School at all times during a school-sponsored trip.  Chaperones 
may take their own non-enrolled children (two years and older) as guests on appropriate 
school-sponsored trips, provided they assume full responsibility for their behavior and, with 
approval of the Executive Director.   
 
The organizing teacher shall use a field trip attendance form to track attendance, emergency 
contact information, and identify any authorized adults to pick-up students afterhours, if 
applicable.  Organizing teachers shall always have an emergency contact phone number for 
the Executive Director.  If a serious discipline incident occurs during a field trip, the organizing 
teacher shall notify the Executive Director immediately.  No student shall be sent home or 
separated from the school group without prior approval of the organizing teacher. 

 
3. Accommodations: If a family requires special accommodation due to a child’s special 

education needs identified in the child’s Individual Education Plan (IEP) or Section 504 plan, 
the family may request accommodation from the Executive Director.   

 
4. Student and Family Responsibilities: All persons making the field trip or excursion shall be 

deemed to have waived all claims against the Clarksville Charter School or the State of 
California for injury, accident, illness or death occurring during or by reason of the field trip 
or excursion.  All adults, parents and guardians taking any field trip or excursion shall sign a 
statement waiving all claims. 

 
All students on a school-sponsored trip are under the jurisdiction of Clarksville Charter School 
and shall be subject to school disciplinary rules and regulations. 

 
Before a student can participate in a school-sponsored trip, the organizing teacher shall obtain 
parent/guardian permission for the trip.  Whenever a trip involves water activities, the 
parent/guardian shall provide specific permission for his/her child to participate in the water 
activities.   

 
5. Transportation: Parent(s)/guardian(s) are solely responsible for transporting their children to 

the location where the field trip starts.  The organizing teacher will provide the location for the 
field trip, and the time to meet, to the parent(s)/guardian(s) once the field trip has been 
confirmed. 



 
The organizing teacher shall use a field trip attendance form to track attendance, emergency 
contact information, and identify any authorized adults to pick-up students afterhours, if 
applicable.  Organizing teachers shall always have an emergency contact phone number for 
the Executive Director.  If a serious discipline incident occurs during a field trip, the organizing 
teacher shall notify the Executive Director immediately.  No student shall be sent home or 
separated from the school group without prior approval of the organizing teacher. 
 

 

































































































































































































































Clarksville Charter School 
First Second Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on April 21, 2020June 16, 2020 

 

SECONDFIRST AMENDED BYLAWS 

OF 

CLARKSVILLE CHARTER SCHOOL 

a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 

ARTICLE I 
OFFICES 

Section 1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE.  The board of directors shall fix the location of the 
principal executive office of the corporation at any place within or outside the State of California.  
If the principal executive office is located outside the State of California, and the corporation has 
one or more offices in the State of California, the board of directors shall likewise fix and 
designate a principal office in the State of California. 

Section 2. OTHER OFFICES.  The corporation may also establish offices at such other 
places, both within and outside the State of California, as the board of directors may from time 
to time determine or the activities of the corporation may require. 

ARTICLE II 
OBJECTIVES AND PURPOSES 

The specific objectives and purposes of this corporation shall be to operate one or more 
California public charter schools. 

ARTICLE III 
NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES 

The corporation has been formed under the California Nonprofit Public Benefit 
Corporation Law (the “Law”) for the public, nonprofit, nonpartisan, and charitable purposes 
described in its articles of incorporation.  Notwithstanding any other provision in these bylaws, 
this corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise 
any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes of this corporation, and the corporation 
shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt 
from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (“IRC”), or (b) by a corporation contributions to which are deductible under IRC Section 
170(c)(2). 

ARTICLE IV 
DEDICATION OF ASSETS 

The properties and assets of this corporation are irrevocably dedicated to the charitable 
purposes described in Article III above and in the articles of incorporation of this corporation.  No 



- 2 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

part of the net earnings, properties, or assets of this corporation, on dissolution or otherwise, 
shall inure to the benefit of its directors or officers, or to any individual.  On liquidation or 
dissolution of this corporation, all remaining assets of this corporation, after payment, or 
provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities of this corporation, shall be distributed and paid 
over to an organization dedicated to charitable purposes that is exempt from federal income tax 
under IRC Section 501(c)(3) and that is exempt from California income tax under Section 23701d 
of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. 

ARTICLE V 
NO MEMBERS 

Section 1. NO MEMBERS.  The corporation shall have no members within the 
meaning of Section 5056 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law. 

Section 2. AUTHORITY VESTED IN BOARD.  Any action that otherwise requires 
approval by a majority of all members, or approval by the members, requires only approval of 
the Board.  All rights that would otherwise vest under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
Law in the members shall vest in the Board. 

Section 3. ASSOCIATES. The corporation may use the term “members” to refer to 
persons associated with it, but such persons shall not be corporate members within the meaning 
of Section 5056 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law. 

ARTICLE VI 
DIRECTORS 

Section 1. POWERS.  Subject to the provisions of the Law and any limitations in the 
articles of incorporation and these bylaws, the activities and affairs of the corporation shall be 
managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the board of 
directors.  Without prejudice to such general powers, but subject to the same limitations, it is 
hereby expressly declared that the board of directors shall have the following powers in addition 
to the other powers enumerated in these bylaws: 

(a) To select and remove all of the other officers, agents, and employees of 
the corporation; prescribe any powers and duties for them that are consistent with law, with the 
articles of incorporation, and with these bylaws; fix their compensation; and require from them 
security for faithful service. 

(b) To conduct, manage, and control the affairs and activities of the 
corporation and to make such rules and regulations that are consistent with law, the articles of 
incorporation, and these bylaws, as they deem to be appropriate and in the best interests of the 
corporation. 



- 3 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

(c) To adopt, make, and use a corporate seal; and to alter the form of such 
seal. 

(d) To borrow money and to incur indebtedness on behalf of the corporation, 
and to cause to be executed and delivered for the purposes of the corporation, in the corporate 
name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations, 
or other evidences of debt and securities. 

(e) To change the principal executive office or the principal office in the State 
of California from one location to another; to cause the corporation to be qualified to conduct its 
activities in any other state, territory, dependency, or country and conduct its activities within or 
outside the State of California; and to designate any place within or outside the State of California 
for the holding of any board of directors meeting or meetings. 

(f) To make donations for the public welfare or for community funds, hospital, 
charitable, educational, scientific, civic, religious, or similar purposes. 

(g) To act as a trustee under any trust incidental to the principal objects of the 
corporation, and to receive, to hold, to administer, to exchange, and to expend funds and 
property subject to such trust. 

(h) To receive endowments, devises, bequests, gifts, and donations of all kinds 
of property for its own use, or in trust, in order to carry out or to assist in carrying out, the objects 
and purposes of the corporation and to do all things and acts necessary or proper to carry out 
each and all of the purposes and provisions of such endowments, devises, bequests, gifts, and 
donations with full power to mortgage, sell, lease, or otherwise to deal with or dispose of the 
same in accordance with the terms thereof. 

(i) To sell any property, real, personal, or mixed, owned by the corporation at 
any time, and from time to time upon such terms as the board of directors may deem advisable, 
at public or private sale, for cash or upon credit. 

(j) To retain sums received by the corporation uninvested, if, in the discretion 
of the board of trustees, such sums cannot be invested advantageously. 

(k) To retain all or any part of any securities or property acquired by the 
corporation in whatever manner, and to invest and reinvest any funds held by the corporation, 
according to the judgment of the board of directors without being restricted to the class of 
investments that the board of directors is or may hereafter be permitted by law to make or any 
similar restriction; provided, however, that no action shall be taken by or on behalf of the 
corporation if such action is a prohibited transaction or would result in the denial of the tax 
exemption under IRC Section 501 or Section 23701 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. 



- 4 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

(l) To invest funds received by the corporation in stocks, bonds, mortgages, 
loans, whether secured or unsecured, or other investments as the board of directors shall deem 
advisable. 

Section 2. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION.  The authorized number of directors shall 
be no less than three (3) and no more than five eleven (511), unless changed by amendments to 
these bylaws, with the actual number to be determined from time to time by a resolution or 
motion of the board.  Directors shall be elected by a vote of a majority of directors then in office.  
The board of directors shall consist of at least three (3) directors unless changed by an 
amendment to these bylaws. 

Section 3. RESTRICTION ON INTERESTED PERSONS AS DIRECTORS.  In accordance 
with the California Corporations Code, nNo more than 49 percent of the persons serving on the 
board of directors may be “interested persons” (as defined in this Section 3).  An “interested 
person” is (a) any person compensated by the corporation for services rendered to it within the 
previous 12 months, whether as a full- or part-time employee, independent contractor, or 
otherwise, excluding any reasonable compensation, if any, paid to a director as director; or 
(b) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister- in-law, son-in-law, 
daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person.  Spouses of staff are 
ineligible to serve as a member of the board of directors to avoid any conflicts of interest under 
Government Code section 1090.  The board of directors and designated staff members are 
required to follow the recusal processes identified in the Government Code sections 1091 and 
1091.5, and the Political Reform Act (Government Code sections 87100, et seq.).   

Section 4. TERM OF OFFICE; EVENTS CAUSING VACANCIES ON BOARD.  Each director 
shall hold office for twoone (21) years, which terms shall be staggered. A director may serve 
multiple terms of service.  A vacancy or vacancies on the board of directors shall occur in the 
event of (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any director; (b) the declaration by resolution 
of the board of directors of a vacancy in the office of a director who has been convicted of a 
felony, declared of unsound mind by a court order, or found by final order or judgment of any 
court to have breached a duty under the Law, Chapter 2, Article 3; and (c) the increase of the 
authorized number of directors. 

Section 4.Section 5. DIRECTOR SELECTION.  New directors shall be selected in the sole 
discretion of the majority of the board at the time of selection.  The board will endeavor to 
advertise any director vacancies on its website and to the school community.  Current board 
members may also recommend potential new directors to the board.  The board will accept 
applications to fill available vacancies.  The board is not obligated to select any applicant if, in the 
board’s sole discretion, it does not believe the applicant possesses the requisite skills, availability, 
demeanor, etc., suitable for the director position even if that means the position will remain 
vacant.  At least one member of the board of directors will be a community member or a parent 
of Clarksville Charter School student. 



- 5 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

Section 5.Section 6. RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS.  Except as provided below, any 
director may resign by giving written notice to the chairman of the board, if any, or to the 
president, or the secretary, or to the board of directors.  The resignation shall be effective when 
the notice is given unless the notice specifies a later time for the resignation to become effective.  
If a director’s resignation is effective at a later time, the board may designate a successor to take 
office as of the date when the resignation becomes effective.  Except upon notice to the Attorney 
General of California, no director may resign if the corporation would then be left without a duly 
elected director or directors in charge of its affairs. 

Section 6.Section 7. REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS.  Any director may be removed at any 
time by a majority vote of directors then in office, with or without cause. 

Section 7.Section 8. VACANCIES.  Vacancies on the board shall be filled by the vote of a 
majority of directors then in office.  Each director so elected shall hold office until expiration of 
the term of the replaced director, if mid-term, and for the term if voted in at the beginning of a 
new term.until a successor has been duly qualified and elected. 

Section 8.Section 9. PLACE OF MEETINGS AND MEETINGS BY TELEPHONE.  Any meeting 
of the board of directors may be held at any place within the county in which the greatest number 
of pupils who are enrolled in the School reside  within or outside the State of California that has 
been designated from time to time by resolution of the board or in the notice of the meeting.  In 
the absence of such designation, meetings shall be held at the principal executive office of the 
corporation.  Any meeting, annual, regular or special, may be held by conference telephone or 
similar communication equipment, so long as all directors participating in the meeting can hear 
one another and a majority of the members are within the county in which the greatest number 
of pupils who are enrolled in the School reside.  All such directors shall be deemed to be present 
in person at such telephonic meeting.  Prior written notice of any and all such meetings of the 
board of directors shall be provided to the directors at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
time of the holding of the meeting. 

Section 10. ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS.  The annual meeting of the board of 
directors shall be held each year on the date and time as may be fixed by the board of directors.  
At such annual meeting, officers shall be elected and any other proper business may be 
transacted. Other regular meetings of the board of directors shall be held at such time as shall 
from time to time be fixed by the board of directors.  Notice of regular meetings shall not be 
required if the time and place of such meeting is fixed by these bylaws or by the board of 
directors. 

All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called, held and conducted in accordance 
with the terms and provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act California Government Code sections 
54950, et seq., as said chapter may be modified by subsequent legislation. This Act requires that 
at least 72 hours before a regular meeting, and 24 hours before a special meeting, the Board of 



- 6 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

Directors or its designee shall post an agenda containing a brief general description of each item 
of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting. 

 
Section 9.Section 11. SPECIAL MEETINGS.  Special meetings of the board of directors for 

any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the chairman of the board, or a board 
majoritythe president, any vice president, the secretary, or any two directors. 

Notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be delivered to each director 
personally or by telephone or sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, or telegram, charges 
prepaid, or electronic transmission, addressed to each director at his or her address as it is shown 
on the records of the corporation.  In case the notice is mailed, it shall be deposited in the United 
States mail at least four days prior to the time of the holding of the meeting.  In case such notice 
is delivered personally or by telephone or telegraph, it shall be delivered personally or by 
telephone or to the telegraph company at least twenty-four seventy-two (2472) hours prior to 
the time of the holding of the meeting.  Any oral notice given personally or by telephone may be 
communicated either to the director or to the person at the office of the director who the person 
giving the notice has reason to believe will promptly communicate it to the director.  The notice 
need not specify the purpose of the meeting nor the place if the meeting is to be held at the 
principal executive office of the corporation. 

Section 10.Section 12. QUORUM.  A majority of the authorized number of directors shall 
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn as provided in Section 13 
below.  Every act or decision done or made by the board of directors requires a vote of the a 
majority of the acting board of directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is 
present shall be regarded as the act of the board of directors, subject to the provisions of Section 
5212 of the Code (appointment of committees), Section 5233 of the Code (approval of contracts 
or transactions in which a director has a direct or indirect material financial interest), Section 
5234 of the Code (approval of certain transactions between corporations having common 
directorships), Section 5235 (compensation of directors or officers), and Section 5238(e) of the 
Code (indemnification of directors).  A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may 
continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is 
approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for such meeting, or such greater number 
as is required by the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or the Law. 

Section 11.Section 13. WAIVER OF NOTICE; CONSENT.  Notice of a meeting required by 
the Corporations Code need not be given to any director who, either before or after the meeting, 
signs a waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes of the 
meeting.  The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting.  All such 
waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the 
minutes of the meeting.  Notice of meeting shall also be deemed given to any director who 
attends the meeting without protesting, before or at the commencement of the meeting, the 
lack of notice to that director.  Notice of all meetings shall be given in accordance with the 
requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Corporations Code sections 54950, et seq. 



- 7 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

Section 12.Section 14. ADJOURNMENT.  A majority of the directors present, whether or 
not constituting a quorum, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place.  Notice of the 
time and place of holding an adjourned meeting shall be given in the same manner as provided 
for special meetings, unless notice is waived as provided for special meetings.  A copy of the 
notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the 
adjourned meeting was held within 24 hours after the time of the adjournment.  need not be 
given, unless the meeting is adjourned for more than twenty-four (24) hours, in which case notice 
of such time and place shall be given prior to the time of the adjourned meeting, in the manner 
specified in Section 10 of this Article VI, to the directors who were not present at the time of the 
adjournment. 

Section 13. ACTION WITHOUT MEETING.  Any action required or permitted to be taken 
by the board of directors may be taken without a meeting, if all directors shall individually or 
collectively consent in writing to such action. Such action by written consent shall have the same 
force and effect as a unanimous vote of the board of directors.  The written consent or consents 
shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the board. 

Section 14.Section 15. FEES AND COMPENSATION.  Directors and members of committees 
shall receive no compensation for their services; provided however, that directors and members 
of committees may receive reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, as determined by 
resolution of the board of directors.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to preclude 
any director from serving the corporation in any other capacity as an officer, agent, employee, 
or otherwise, and receiving compensation for such services if compensation is awarded by the 
board of directors. 

ARTICLE VII 
COMMITTEES 

Section 1. COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS.  The board of directors may, by resolution 
adopted by a majority of the directors then in office, designate one or more committees, each 
consisting of two or more directors, to serve at the pleasure of the board.  Appointments to such 
committees shall be by a majority vote of the directors then in office.  The board may designate 
one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent 
member at any meeting of the committee.  Any such committee, to the extent provided in the 
resolution of the board, shall be advisory onlymay have all the authority of the board, except 
with respect to.: 

(a) undertaking any final action on any matter that, under the Law, also 
requires approval of the board of directors; 

(b) the filling of vacancies on the board of directors or in any committee; 

(c) the amendment or repeal of bylaws or the adoption of new bylaws; 



- 8 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

(d) the amendment or repeal of any resolution of the board of directors that 
by its express terms is not so amendable or repealable; 

(e) the appointment of any other committees of the board of directors or the 
members thereof; 

(f) the expenditure of corporate funds to support a nominee for director after 
there are more people nominated for director than can be elected; or 

(g) the approval of any contract or transaction to which the corporation is a 
party and in which one or more of its directors has a material financial interest, except as special 
approval is provided for in Section 5233(d)(3) of the Code. 

Section 2. MEETINGS AND ACTION. Meetings and action of committees of the board 
shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Article VI of these 
bylaws, Sections 8 (place of meetings and meetings by telephone), 9 (annual and regular 
meetings), 10 (special meetings), 11 (quorum), 12 (waiver of notice), 13 (adjournment) and 14 
(action without meeting), with such changes in the context of those bylaws as are necessary to 
substitute the committee and its members for the board of directors and its members, except 
for the following:  (a) the time of regular and annual meetings of committees may be determined 
by resolution of the board of directors as well as the committee; (b) special meetings of 
committees may also be called by resolution of the board of directors; and (c) and notice of 
special meetings of committees shall also be given to all alternate members, who shall have the 
right to attend all meetings of the committee.  Minutes of each meeting of any committee shall 
be kept and filed with the corporate records.  The board of directors may adopt rules for the 
government of any committee not inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws.  If required 
by law, committee meetings shall be held in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California 
Government Code sections 54950, et seq. 

ARTICLE VIII 
OFFICERS 

Section 1. OFFICERS.  The officers of the corporation shall be a president, a secretary, 
and a chief financial officer.  The corporation may also have, at the discretion of the board of 
directors, a chairman of the board, one or more vice presidents, one or more assistant 
secretaries, one or more assistant treasurers, and such other officers as may be appointed in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this Article VIII.  Any number of offices may be 
held by the same person, except that neither the secretary nor the chief financial officer may 
serve concurrently as the president or the chairman of the board. 

Section 2. ELECTION.  The officers of the corporation, except such officers as may be 
appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 or Section 5 of this Article VIII, shall be 
chosen by the board of directors, and each shall serve at the pleasure of the board, subject to 
the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment. 



- 9 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

Section 3. OTHER OFFICERS.  The board of directors may appoint, and may empower 
the president to appoint, such other officers as the activities of the corporation may require, each 
of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are 
provided in the bylaws or as the board of directors may from time to time determine. 

Section 4. REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION.  Subject to the rights, if any, of any officer 
under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, 
by the board of directors or, except in case of an officer chosen by the board of directors, by any 
officer upon whom such power of removal may be conferred by the board of directors. 

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the corporation. Any 
such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time 
specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation 
shall not be necessary to make it effective.  Any such resignation is without prejudice to the rights, 
if any, of the corporation under any contract to which the officer is a party. 

Section 5. VACANCIES. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, 
removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these 
bylaws for regular appointments to such office. 

Section 6. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD.  The chairman of the board, if such an officer 
be elected, shall, if present, preside at meetings of the board of directors and exercise and 
perform such other powers and duties as may be from time to time assigned to him or her by the 
board of directors or prescribed by the bylaws.  If there is no president, the chairman of the board 
will in addition be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall have the powers and 
duties prescribed in Section 7 of this Article VIII. 

Section 7. PRESIDENT.  Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given by 
the board of directors to the chairman of the board, if there be such an officer, the president 
shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, subject to the control of the board 
of directors, have general supervision, direction, and control of the activities and the officers of 
the corporation.  He or she shall preside, in the absence of the chairman of the board, or if there 
be none, at all meetings of the board of directors.  He or she shall have the general powers and 
duties of management usually vested in the office of president of the corporation and shall have 
such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or the bylaws. 

Section 8. VICE PRESIDENTS.  In the absence or disability of the president, the vice 
presidents, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the board of directors or, if not ranked, a vice 
president designated by the board of directors, shall perform all the duties of the president, and 
when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon, the 
president.  The vice presidents shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as 
from time to time may be prescribed for them respectively by the board of directors or the bylaws 
and the president or the chairman of the board. 



- 10 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

Section 9. SECRETARY.  The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal 
executive office or such other place as the board of directors may direct, a book of minutes of all 
meetings and actions of directors, and committees of directors, with the time and place of 
holding, whether regular or special, and, if special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, the 
names of those present at directors and committee meetings, and the proceedings thereof. 

The secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the board 
of directors required by the bylaws or by law to be given, and he or she shall keep the seal of the 
corporation, if one be adopted, in safe custody, and shall have such other powers and perform 
such other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or by the bylaws. 

Section 10. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.  The chief financial officer shall keep and 
maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and records of 
accounts of the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including accounts of its 
assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained earnings, and other 
matters customarily included in financial statements.  The books of account shall at all reasonable 
times be open to inspection by any director. 

The chief financial officer shall deposit, or cause to be deposited, all monies and 
other valuables in the name and to the credit of the corporation with such depositaries as may 
be designated by the board of directors.  He or she shall distribute, or cause to be disbursed, the 
funds of the corporation as may be ordered by the board of directors, shall render to the 
president and directors, whenever they request it, an account of all financial transactions and of 
the financial condition of the corporation, and shall have such other powers and perform such 
other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or the bylaws. 

If required by the board of directors, the chief financial officer shall give the 
corporation a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the board for 
faithful performance of the duties of his or her office and for restoration to the corporation of all 
of its books, papers, vouchers, money, and other property of every kind in his or her possession 
or under his or her control on the death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office of the 
chief financial officer. 

ARTICLE IX 
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES 

Section 1. DEFINITIONS.  For the purposes of this Article IX, the definition of the terms 
“agent”, “proceeding”, and “expenses” shall be governed by Section 5238 of the Code. 

Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY THIRD PARTIES.  The corporation shall 
have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party 
to any proceeding (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation to procure a 
judgment in its favor, an action brought under Section 5233 of the Code, or an action brought by 
the Attorney General of California or a person granted relator status by the Attorney General of 



- 11 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

California for any breach of duty relating to assets held in charitable trust) by reason of the fact 
that such person is or was an agent of the corporation, against expenses, judgments, fines, 
settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such 
proceeding if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed 
to be in the best interests of the corporation and, in the case of a criminal proceeding, had no 
reasonable cause to believe the conduct of such person was unlawful.  The termination of any 
proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its 
equivalent shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and 
in a manner which the person reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the corporation 
or that the person had reasonable cause to believe that the person's conduct was unlawful. 

Section 3. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY OR IN THE RIGHT OF THE 
CORPORATION.  The corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party 
or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action by or in the 
right of the corporation, or brought under Section 5233 of the Code, or brought by the Attorney 
General of California or a person granted relator status by the Attorney General of California for 
breach of duty relating to assets held in charitable trust, to procure a judgment in its favor by 
reason of the fact that such person is or was an agent of the corporation, against expenses 
actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of 
such action if such person acted in good faith, in a manner such person believed to be in the best 
interests of the corporation, and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily 
prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances. No indemnification shall 
be made under this Section 3 for any of the following: 

(a) Any claim, issue, or matter as to which such person shall have been 
adjudged to be liable to the corporation in the performance of such person's duty to the 
corporation, unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action was brought shall 
determine upon application that, in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly 
and reasonably entitled to indemnity for the expenses which such court shall determine; 

(b) Amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of a threatened or pending 
action, with or without court approval; or 

(c) Expenses incurred in defending a threatened or pending action which is 
settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval, unless it is settled with the approval of 
the Attorney General of California. 

Section 4. INDEMNIFICATION AGAINST EXPENSES.  To the extent that an agent of the 
corporation has been successful on the merits in defense of any proceeding referred to in 
Sections 2 or 3 of this Article IX or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter therein, the agent 
shall be indemnified against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the agent in 
connection therewith. 



- 12 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

Section 5. REQUIRED DETERMINATIONS.  Except as provided in Section 4 of this 
Article IX, any indemnification under this Article shall be made by the corporation only if 
authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of the agent is proper 
in the circumstances because the agent has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in 
Sections 2 or 3 of this Article IX by: 

(a) A majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who are not parties to 
such proceeding; or 

(b) The court in which such proceeding is or was pending upon application 
made by the corporation or the agent or the attorney or other person rendering services in 
connection with the defense, whether or not such application by the agent, attorney, or other 
person is opposed by the corporation. 

Section 6. ADVANCE OF EXPENSES.  Expenses incurred in defending any proceeding 
may be advanced by the corporation prior to the final disposition of such proceeding upon receipt 
of an undertaking by or on behalf of the agent to repay such amount unless it shall be determined 
ultimately that the agent is entitled to be indemnified as authorized in this Article IX. 

Section 7. OTHER INDEMNIFICATION.  No provision made by the corporation to 
indemnify its directors or officers for the defense of any proceeding, whether contained in the 
articles of incorporation, bylaws, a resolution of directors, an agreement, or otherwise, shall be 
valid unless consistent with this Article IX. Nothing contained in this Article IX shall affect any 
right to indemnification to which persons other than such directors and officers may be entitled 
by contract or otherwise. 

Section 8. FORMS OF INDEMNIFICATION NOT PERMITTED.  No indemnification or 
advance shall be made under this Article IX, except as provided in Section 4 or Section 5(b), in 
any circumstance if it appears that: 

(a) It would be inconsistent with a provision of the articles of incorporation, 
bylaws, or an agreement in effect at the time of the accrual of the alleged cause of action asserted 
in the proceeding in which the expenses were incurred or other amounts were paid, which 
prohibits or otherwise limits indemnification; or 

(b) It would be inconsistent with any condition expressly imposed by a court 
in approving a settlement. 

Section 9. INSURANCE.  The corporation shall have the power to purchase and 
maintain insurance on behalf of any agent of the corporation against any liability asserted against 
or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent’s status as such, whether or 
not the corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the 
provisions of this Article IX; provided, however, that the corporation shall have no power to 



- 13 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

purchase and maintain such insurance to indemnify any agent of the corporation for a violation 
of Section 5233 of the Code. 

ARTICLE X 
RECORDS AND REPORTS 

Section 1. MAINTENANCE OF CORPORATE RECORDS.  The corporation shall keep 
(a) adequate and correct books and records of account kept either in written form or in any other 
form capable of being converted into written form and (b) minutes, in written form, of the 
proceedings of the board of directors and committees of the board.  All such records shall be 
kept at the corporation's principal executive office, or if its principal executive office is outside 
the State of California, at its principal office in this state. 

Section 2. MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF ARTICLES AND BYLAWS.  The 
corporation shall keep at its principal executive office, or if its principal executive office is not in 
the State of California, at its principal office in this state, the original or a copy of its articles of 
incorporation and bylaws, as amended to date, that shall be open to inspection by the directors 
at all reasonable times during office hours.  If the principal executive office of the corporation is 
outside the State of California and the corporation has no principal office in this state, the 
Secretary shall, upon the written request of any director, furnish to such director a copy of the 
articles of incorporation or bylaws, as amended to date. 

Section 3. INSPECTION.  Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable 
time, and from time to time, to inspect all books, records, and documents of every kind and the 
physical properties of the corporation.  Such inspection by a director may be made in person or 
by agent or attorney and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts. 

Section 4. ANNUAL REPORTS.  The board of directors shall cause an annual report to 
be sent to the directors within 120 days of the corporation’s fiscal year end. That report shall 
contain the following information, in appropriate detail, for the fiscal year: 

(a) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the corporation as of 
the end of the fiscal year; 

(b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds; 

(c) The revenue or receipts of the corporation, both unrestricted and 
restricted to particular purposes; 

(d) The expenses or disbursements of the corporation for both general and 
restricted purposes; and 

(e) Any information required by Section 5 of this Article X. 



- 14 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

The annual report shall be accompanied by any report thereon of independent 
accountants or, if there is no such report, by the certificate of an authorized officer of the 
corporation that such statements were prepared without audit from the books and records of 
the corporation. 

Section 5. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND 
INDEMNIFICATIONS.  As part of the annual report to all directors, the corporation shall annually 
prepare and mail or deliver to each director within 120 days after the corporation's fiscal year 
end, a statement (described below) of any transaction or indemnification (i) in which the 
corporation was a party and (ii) in which an “interested person” had a direct or indirect material 
financial interest, if any such transaction occurred.  For this purpose, an “interested person” is 
any director or officer of the corporation. 

The statement shall include the following information: 

(a) A brief description of any transaction during the previous fiscal year that 
involved more than $50,000, or was one of a number of transactions in which the same interested 
person had a direct or indirect material financial interest involving, in the aggregate, more than 
$50,000; 

(b) The names of interested persons involved in such transactions described 
in the preceding paragraph (a), their relationship to the corporation, the nature of their interest 
in the transaction and, if practicable, the amount of that interest; provided, however, that if the 
transaction was with a partnership in which the interested person is a partner, only the interest 
of the partnership need be stated; and 

(c) A brief description of the amount and circumstances of any 
indemnifications or advances aggregating more than $10,000 paid during the fiscal year to any 
officer or director of the corporation under Article IX of these bylaws, unless that indemnification 
already has been approved by the directors under Section 5238(e)(2) of the Code. 

ARTICLE XI 
GENERAL MATTERS 

Section 1. CHECKS, DRAFTS, EVIDENCES OF INDEBTEDNESS.  All checks, drafts, or 
other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness, issued in the 
name of or payable to the corporation, shall be signed or endorsed by such person or persons 
and in such manner as, from time to time, shall be determined by resolution of the board of 
directors. 

Section 2. CORPORATE CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS; HOW EXECUTED.  Except as 
otherwise provided in these bylaws, the board of directors may authorize any officer or officers, 
agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on 
behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances; 



- 15 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

and, unless so authorized or ratified by the board of directors or within the agency power of an 
officer, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the corporation 
by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or for 
any amount. 

Section 3. REPRESENTATION OF SHARES OF OTHER CORPORATIONS.  The chairman 
of the board, the president, or any vice president, or any other person authorized by resolution 
of the board of directors or by any of the foregoing designated officers, is authorized to vote on 
behalf of the corporation any and all shares of any other corporation or corporations, foreign or 
domestic, standing in the name of the corporation.  The authority granted to said officers to vote 
or represent on behalf of the corporation any and all shares held by the corporation in any other 
corporation or corporations may be exercised by any such officer in person or by any person 
authorized to do so by a proxy duly executed by said officer. 

Section 4. CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS.  Unless the context requires 
otherwise, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the Law shall govern 
the construction of these bylaws.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the singular 
number includes the plural, the plural number includes the singular, the masculine gender 
includes the feminine and neuter, and the term "person" includes both a corporation and a 
natural person.  All references in these bylaws to the Law, the Law, or to the Code shall be 
deemed to be those in effect from time to time. 

ARTICLE XII 
AMENDMENTS 

The board may adopt, amend, or repeal bylaws unless doing so would be a prohibited 
amendment under the California Corporations Code. Any amendment to these bylaws will 
require a majority vote of the directors then in office; provided, however, that if the articles of 
incorporation of the corporation set forth the number of authorized directors of the corporation, 
the authorized number of directors may be changed only by an amendment of the articles of 
incorporation. 

  



- 16 - 
Clarksville Charter School  
First Amended Bylaws 
Adopted on June 18, 2020 
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

The undersigned, being the duly elected and acting Secretary of Clarksville Charter School, 
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, does hereby certify that the foregoing First 
Amended Bylaws constitute the bylaws of this corporation as duly adopted at the meeting of the 
Board of Directors of Clarksville Charter School on June 18, 2020.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate this 18th day of 
June, 2020. 

 

 

  
Katie Burwell, Secretary 



          

Clarksville   

   
July 2020  

S M T W Th F S 
   1 2 3 4 
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30 31  

       
 

 August 2020  
S M T W Th F S 
      1 
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30 31      

 

 September 2020  
S M T W Th F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30    

       
 

     
October 2020 

S M T W Th F S 
    1 2 3 
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
       

 

 November 2020 
S M T W Th F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30      

       
 

 December 2020 
S M T W Th F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30 31   

       
 

     
January 2021  

S M T W Th F S 
     1 2 
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31       

 

 February 2021  
S M T W Th F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28       
       

 

 March 2021  
S M T W Th F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30 31    
       

 

     
April 2021  

S M T W Th F S 
    1 2 3 
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30  
       

 

 May 2021  
S M T W Th F S 
      1 
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30 31      

 

 June 2021  
S M T W Th F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30    

       
 

      

 Notes:  
July 30 – Board Meeting 

August 27 – Board Meeting 

September 24 – Board Meeting 

October 29 – Board Meeting 

November 19 – Board Meeting 

December 10 – Board Meeting 

January 28 – Board Meeting 

February 25 – Board Meeting 

March 25 – Board Meeting 

April 29 – Board Meeting 

May 27 – Board Meeting 

June 24 – Board Meeting 
    

                                                                     2020-2021 

Legend: 
 
Blue   – Board Meeting 
 
Green  – Holiday 
 
Orange – Due Date  

    (See appendix) 
 



          

Appendix – Important Due Dates 
 
 

 
October 

• Unaudited Actuals  
• November 1st - Dashboard Indicators due to the state  

 
December  

• Approval of Previous Years Audit 
• December 15th - LCAP (for 2020-2021 School Year Only)  
• December 15th - First Interims due to the county 

 
January  

• February 1st - SARC (School Accountability Report Card) due to the state  
 

February 
• March 1st - Comprehensive School Safety Plan 

 
March  

• March 15th - Second Interims due to the county  
• March 31st - Auditor Selection Form due to the county 

 
April  

• April 1st - Form 700s due to the County Board of Supervisors 
• School Calendars 

 
May 

• Public Hearing of LCAP 
 
June  

• Adopted Budget 
• Final Approval of the LCAP 
• Board Meeting Calendar  

 
 



CLARKSVILLE CHARTER SCHOOL 

BOARD RESOLUTION 2020-8 

I. Adoption of Clarksville Charter School Approving Stipend Expense for Travel, 
Internet and Phone 
 
WHEREAS, Directors may be reimbursed by the Corporation for expenses 
reasonably anticipated to be incurred in the performance of the duties of such officer 
or director, and 
 
WHEREAS, Directors are incurring ongoing expenses for equipment, internet 
services and software, as well as travel expenses, to prepare for and participate in 
meetings of the Board; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Directors have determined that the reasonable cost of such expenses 
is approximately [$XXX] for each Board meeting attended; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
  
1. Each Director shall be entitled to a stipend of $XXX for each Board meeting 

attended. 
 

2.    Each Directors shall maintain such records as he or she deems proper to 
substantiate such costs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE 

I, _________________, Secretary of the Board of Directors of Clarksville Charter School a 
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, County of _____________, California, hereby certify as 
follows: 

The attached is a full, true, and correct copy of the resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the 
Board of Directors of Clarksville Charter School which was duly and regularly held on ____________, 
2020, at which meeting all of the members of the Board of Directors had due notice and at which a 
quorum thereof was present; and at such meeting such resolutions were adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

I have carefully compared the same with the original minutes of such meeting on file and of 
record in my office; the attached resolution is a full, true, and correct copy of the original resolution 
adopted at such meeting and entered in such minutes; and such resolution has not been amended, 
modified, or rescinded since the date of its adoption, and the same is now in full force and effect. 

WITNESS my hand on ______________, 2020. 

 

______________________________________ 
Secretary of the Board of Directors of 
Clarksville Charter School  

 





https://www.cde.ca.gov/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fr/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fr/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/pn/fb/index.asp
mailto:sacsinfo@cde.ca.gov
mailto:sarc@cde.ca.gov
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/index.asp




http://www.nea.org/
mailto:sacsinfo@cde.ca.gov

	ADPFF2D.tmp
	COVID-19 Operations Written Report

	ADPC99F.tmp
	A. Returning Educational Products: All educational items requested through the Enrichment ordering system are the property of the Charter School.  This includes any technology, textbooks, and other educational items.  Families must return all educatio...
	B. Damaged or Lost Educational Items:  Parents are responsible for replacing lost, stolen, damage, or otherwise unreturned educational items to the extent allowed under applicable law. If an educational item is damaged, parents must immediately contac...

	ADP6F15.tmp
	Article I  OFFICES
	Section 1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE.  The board of directors shall fix the location of the principal executive office of the corporation at any place within or outside the State of California.  If the principal executive office is located outside the State of...
	Section 2. OTHER OFFICES.  The corporation may also establish offices at such other places, both within and outside the State of California, as the board of directors may from time to time determine or the activities of the corporation may require.

	Article II  OBJECTIVES AND PURPOSES
	Article III  NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES
	Article IV  DEDICATION OF ASSETS
	Article V  NO MEMBERS
	Section 1. NO MEMBERS.  The corporation shall have no members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law.
	Section 2. AUTHORITY VESTED IN BOARD.  Any action that otherwise requires approval by a majority of all members, or approval by the members, requires only approval of the Board.  All rights that would otherwise vest under the Nonprofit Public Benefit ...
	Section 3. ASSOCIATES. The corporation may use the term “members” to refer to persons associated with it, but such persons shall not be corporate members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law.

	Article VI  DIRECTORS
	Section 1. POWERS.  Subject to the provisions of the Law and any limitations in the articles of incorporation and these bylaws, the activities and affairs of the corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the ...
	(a) To select and remove all of the other officers, agents, and employees of the corporation; prescribe any powers and duties for them that are consistent with law, with the articles of incorporation, and with these bylaws; fix their compensation; and...
	(b) To conduct, manage, and control the affairs and activities of the corporation and to make such rules and regulations that are consistent with law, the articles of incorporation, and these bylaws, as they deem to be appropriate and in the best inte...
	(c) To adopt, make, and use a corporate seal; and to alter the form of such seal.
	(d) To borrow money and to incur indebtedness on behalf of the corporation, and to cause to be executed and delivered for the purposes of the corporation, in the corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, ...
	(e) To change the principal executive office or the principal office in the State of California from one location to another; to cause the corporation to be qualified to conduct its activities in any other state, territory, dependency, or country and ...
	(f) To make donations for the public welfare or for community funds, hospital, charitable, educational, scientific, civic, religious, or similar purposes.
	(g) To act as a trustee under any trust incidental to the principal objects of the corporation, and to receive, to hold, to administer, to exchange, and to expend funds and property subject to such trust.
	(h) To receive endowments, devises, bequests, gifts, and donations of all kinds of property for its own use, or in trust, in order to carry out or to assist in carrying out, the objects and purposes of the corporation and to do all things and acts nec...
	(i) To sell any property, real, personal, or mixed, owned by the corporation at any time, and from time to time upon such terms as the board of directors may deem advisable, at public or private sale, for cash or upon credit.
	(j) To retain sums received by the corporation uninvested, if, in the discretion of the board of trustees, such sums cannot be invested advantageously.
	(k) To retain all or any part of any securities or property acquired by the corporation in whatever manner, and to invest and reinvest any funds held by the corporation, according to the judgment of the board of directors without being restricted to t...
	(l) To invest funds received by the corporation in stocks, bonds, mortgages, loans, whether secured or unsecured, or other investments as the board of directors shall deem advisable.

	Section 2. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION.  The authorized number of directors shall be no less than three (3) and no more than five eleven (511), unless changed by amendments to these bylaws, with the actual number to be determined from time to time by a r...
	Section 3. RESTRICTION ON INTERESTED PERSONS AS DIRECTORS.  In accordance with the California Corporations Code, nNo more than 49 percent of the persons serving on the board of directors may be “interested persons” (as defined in this Section 3).  An ...
	Section 4. TERM OF OFFICE; EVENTS CAUSING VACANCIES ON BOARD.  Each director shall hold office for twoone (21) years, which terms shall be staggered. A director may serve multiple terms of service.  A vacancy or vacancies on the board of directors sha...
	Section 5. DIRECTOR SELECTION.  New directors shall be selected in the sole discretion of the majority of the board at the time of selection.  The board will endeavor to advertise any director vacancies on its website and to the school community.  Cur...
	Section 6. RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS.  Except as provided below, any director may resign by giving written notice to the chairman of the board, if any, or to the president, or the secretary, or to the board of directors.  The resignation shall be effec...
	Section 7. REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS.  Any director may be removed at any time by a majority vote of directors then in office, with or without cause.
	Section 8. VACANCIES.  Vacancies on the board shall be filled by the vote of a majority of directors then in office.  Each director so elected shall hold office until expiration of the term of the replaced director, if mid-term, and for the term if vo...
	Section 9. PLACE OF MEETINGS AND MEETINGS BY TELEPHONE.  Any meeting of the board of directors may be held at any place within the county in which the greatest number of pupils who are enrolled in the School reside  within or outside the State of Cali...
	Section 10. ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS.  The annual meeting of the board of directors shall be held each year on the date and time as may be fixed by the board of directors.  At such annual meeting, officers shall be elected and any other proper busi...
	Section 11. SPECIAL MEETINGS.  Special meetings of the board of directors for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the chairman of the board, or a board majoritythe president, any vice president, the secretary, or any two directors.
	Section 12. QUORUM.  A majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn as provided in Section 13 below.  Every act or decision done or made by the board of directors requires ...
	Section 13. WAIVER OF NOTICE; CONSENT.  Notice of a meeting required by the Corporations Code need not be given to any director who, either before or after the meeting, signs a waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the ...
	Section 14. ADJOURNMENT.  A majority of the directors present, whether or not constituting a quorum, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place.  Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting shall be given in the same manner as ...
	Section 1. ACTION WITHOUT MEETING.  Any action required or permitted to be taken by the board of directors may be taken without a meeting, if all directors shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such action by written co...
	Section 15. FEES AND COMPENSATION.  Directors and members of committees shall receive no compensation for their services; provided however, that directors and members of committees may receive reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, as determined by ...

	Article VII  COMMITTEES
	Section 1. COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS.  The board of directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors then in office, designate one or more committees, each consisting of two or more directors, to serve at the pleasure of the board.  A...
	(a) undertaking any final action on any matter that, under the Law, also requires approval of the board of directors;
	(a) the filling of vacancies on the board of directors or in any committee;
	(a) the amendment or repeal of bylaws or the adoption of new bylaws;
	(a) the amendment or repeal of any resolution of the board of directors that by its express terms is not so amendable or repealable;
	(a) the appointment of any other committees of the board of directors or the members thereof;
	(a) the expenditure of corporate funds to support a nominee for director after there are more people nominated for director than can be elected; or
	(a) the approval of any contract or transaction to which the corporation is a party and in which one or more of its directors has a material financial interest, except as special approval is provided for in Section 5233(d)(3) of the Code.

	Section 2. MEETINGS AND ACTION. Meetings and action of committees of the board shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Article VI of these bylaws, Sections 8 (place of meetings and meetings by telephone), 9 (annu...

	Article VIII  OFFICERS
	Section 1. OFFICERS.  The officers of the corporation shall be a president, a secretary, and a chief financial officer.  The corporation may also have, at the discretion of the board of directors, a chairman of the board, one or more vice presidents, ...
	Section 2. ELECTION.  The officers of the corporation, except such officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 or Section 5 of this Article VIII, shall be chosen by the board of directors, and each shall serve at the pl...
	Section 3. OTHER OFFICERS.  The board of directors may appoint, and may empower the president to appoint, such other officers as the activities of the corporation may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and pe...
	Section 4. REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION.  Subject to the rights, if any, of any officer under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by the board of directors or, except in case of an officer chosen by the boa...
	Section 5. VACANCIES. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these bylaws for regular appointments to such office.
	Section 6. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD.  The chairman of the board, if such an officer be elected, shall, if present, preside at meetings of the board of directors and exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may be from time to time assigned to...
	Section 7. PRESIDENT.  Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given by the board of directors to the chairman of the board, if there be such an officer, the president shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, su...
	Section 8. VICE PRESIDENTS.  In the absence or disability of the president, the vice presidents, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the board of directors or, if not ranked, a vice president designated by the board of directors, shall perform ...
	Section 9. SECRETARY.  The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office or such other place as the board of directors may direct, a book of minutes of all meetings and actions of directors, and committees of directors, ...
	Section 10. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.  The chief financial officer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and records of accounts of the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including...

	Article IX  INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES
	Section 1. DEFINITIONS.  For the purposes of this Article IX, the definition of the terms “agent”, “proceeding”, and “expenses” shall be governed by Section 5238 of the Code.
	Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY THIRD PARTIES.  The corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any proceeding (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation t...
	Section 3. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY OR IN THE RIGHT OF THE CORPORATION.  The corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action by or in t...
	(a) Any claim, issue, or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation in the performance of such person's duty to the corporation, unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action was brought...
	(b) Amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of a threatened or pending action, with or without court approval; or
	(c) Expenses incurred in defending a threatened or pending action which is settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval, unless it is settled with the approval of the Attorney General of California.

	Section 4. INDEMNIFICATION AGAINST EXPENSES.  To the extent that an agent of the corporation has been successful on the merits in defense of any proceeding referred to in Sections 2 or 3 of this Article IX or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter ...
	Section 5. REQUIRED DETERMINATIONS.  Except as provided in Section 4 of this Article IX, any indemnification under this Article shall be made by the corporation only if authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of the ...
	(a) A majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who are not parties to such proceeding; or
	(b) The court in which such proceeding is or was pending upon application made by the corporation or the agent or the attorney or other person rendering services in connection with the defense, whether or not such application by the agent, attorney, o...

	Section 6. ADVANCE OF EXPENSES.  Expenses incurred in defending any proceeding may be advanced by the corporation prior to the final disposition of such proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the agent to repay such amount unless...
	Section 7. OTHER INDEMNIFICATION.  No provision made by the corporation to indemnify its directors or officers for the defense of any proceeding, whether contained in the articles of incorporation, bylaws, a resolution of directors, an agreement, or o...
	Section 8. FORMS OF INDEMNIFICATION NOT PERMITTED.  No indemnification or advance shall be made under this Article IX, except as provided in Section 4 or Section 5(b), in any circumstance if it appears that:
	(a) It would be inconsistent with a provision of the articles of incorporation, bylaws, or an agreement in effect at the time of the accrual of the alleged cause of action asserted in the proceeding in which the expenses were incurred or other amounts...
	(b) It would be inconsistent with any condition expressly imposed by a court in approving a settlement.

	Section 9. INSURANCE.  The corporation shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any agent of the corporation against any liability asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent’s sta...

	Article X  RECORDS AND REPORTS
	Section 1. MAINTENANCE OF CORPORATE RECORDS.  The corporation shall keep (a) adequate and correct books and records of account kept either in written form or in any other form capable of being converted into written form and (b) minutes, in written fo...
	Section 2. MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF ARTICLES AND BYLAWS.  The corporation shall keep at its principal executive office, or if its principal executive office is not in the State of California, at its principal office in this state, the original or...
	Section 3. INSPECTION.  Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time, and from time to time, to inspect all books, records, and documents of every kind and the physical properties of the corporation.  Such inspection by a direct...
	Section 4. ANNUAL REPORTS.  The board of directors shall cause an annual report to be sent to the directors within 120 days of the corporation’s fiscal year end. That report shall contain the following information, in appropriate detail, for the fisca...
	(a) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the corporation as of the end of the fiscal year;
	(b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds;
	(c) The revenue or receipts of the corporation, both unrestricted and restricted to particular purposes;
	(d) The expenses or disbursements of the corporation for both general and restricted purposes; and
	(e) Any information required by Section 5 of this Article X.

	Section 5. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND INDEMNIFICATIONS.  As part of the annual report to all directors, the corporation shall annually prepare and mail or deliver to each director within 120 days after the corporation's fiscal year e...
	(a) A brief description of any transaction during the previous fiscal year that involved more than $50,000, or was one of a number of transactions in which the same interested person had a direct or indirect material financial interest involving, in t...
	(b) The names of interested persons involved in such transactions described in the preceding paragraph (a), their relationship to the corporation, the nature of their interest in the transaction and, if practicable, the amount of that interest; provid...
	(c) A brief description of the amount and circumstances of any indemnifications or advances aggregating more than $10,000 paid during the fiscal year to any officer or director of the corporation under Article IX of these bylaws, unless that indemnifi...


	Article XI  GENERAL MATTERS
	Section 1. CHECKS, DRAFTS, EVIDENCES OF INDEBTEDNESS.  All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness, issued in the name of or payable to the corporation, shall be signed or endorsed by such person...
	Section 2. CORPORATE CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS; HOW EXECUTED.  Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, the board of directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the nam...
	Section 3. REPRESENTATION OF SHARES OF OTHER CORPORATIONS.  The chairman of the board, the president, or any vice president, or any other person authorized by resolution of the board of directors or by any of the foregoing designated officers, is auth...
	Section 4. CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS.  Unless the context requires otherwise, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the Law shall govern the construction of these bylaws.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing...

	Article XII  AMENDMENTS

	ADP606D.tmp
	Clarksville
	July 2020 
	August 2020 
	September 2020 
	October 2020
	November 2020
	December 2020
	January 2021 
	February 2021 
	March 2021 
	April 2021 
	May 2021 
	June 2021 
	Notes: 

	                                                                     2020-2021
	Appendix – Important Due Dates

	Clarksvillecovid19report.pdf
	COVID-19 Operations Written Report

	ADP87FA.tmp
	 Clarksville Charter School
	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 1: District Commitment to School Safety

	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 2: Legislative Requirements

	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 3: Maintaining a Safe and Orderly Environment

	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 4: Criminal Background Check

	CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section C: Emergency/Disaster Plans - Ed Code 32287; CCR Title 8, Sec 3220 ADA
	Part 1: General Information – Disaster
	Part 2: Biological/Chemical Weapons Assault
	Part 3: Bomb Threat Procedures
	Part 4: Chemical or Hazardous Material Incident
	Part 5: Earthquake Procedures
	Part 6: Explosion, Aircraft Crash or Similar Incident 
	Part 7: Fire Procedures
	Part 8: Flood Procedures
	Part 9: Lockdown/Civil Unrest Procedures
	Part 10: Severe Windstorm Procedures

	This Emergency Action Plan is being developed to provide information to the staff at Clarksville Charter School to ensure pertinent information is available in the case of an incident that warrants a response.  It is written in accordance with Califor...
	EVACUATION PROCEDURES
	LOCKDOWN/REVERSE EVACUATION PROCEDURES
	PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING A “SIZE-UP”
	1.  Gather Facts:
	2.  Assess and Communicate the Damage:
	3. Consider Probabilities:
	4. Assess Your Own Situation:
	5.  Establish Priorities:
	6.  Make Decisions:
	7. Develop an INCIDENT ACTION PLAN:
	8.  Take Action:
	9.  Evaluate Progress:

	BOMB THREAT
	TELEPHONE BOMB THREAT
	E-MAIL BOMB THREAT

	FIRE/EXPLOSION
	FIRE DRILL PROCEDURES
	POSTING OF EVACUATION ROUTES
	FIRE/EXPLOSION CHECKLIST

	EARTHQUAKE
	IF INDOORS
	IN VEHICLE:
	GENERAL GUIDELINES (AFTER THE QUAKE):

	SHOOTING/STABBINGS
	IMMINENT WARNING SIGNS REQUIRE AN IMMEDIATE RESPONSE AND MAY INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING
	WHAT TO DO IF A SHOOTING/STABBING OCCURS AT THE SCHOOL OFFICE
	IF STAFF ARE OUTSIDE, THEY SHOULD BE TRAINED AND/OR INSTRUCTED TO
	SCENE OF INCIDENT

	DEATH AND/OR SUICIDE
	DEATH OCCURS AT SCHOOL (student’s learn primarily at home)
	IF THE OFFICE IS TAKEN HOSTAGE
	WHEN THE HOSTAGE LOCATION IS OTHER THAN AN OFFICE
	WHILE WAITING FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT
	ONCE LAW ENFORCEMENT ARRIVES
	THE SITE EMERGENCY TEAM SHOULD MAKE PLANS TO
	UNDERSTANDING NONVERBAL MESSAGES
	SEND THE RIGHT NONVERBAL MESSAGES
	ATTEMPT TO USE PHRASES SUCH AS:
	WHAT TO DO:

	CHEMICAL RELEASE/ HAZARDOUS MATERIAL SPILL
	HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OFFICE PREPARE?
	HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OR DISTRICT RESPOND?

	MEDICAL EMERGENCY
	SOME EMERGENCY PREVENTION/PREPAREDNESS GUIDELINES
	WHAT TO DO IF A MEDICAL EMERGENCY OCCURS

	GAS ODOR/LEAK
	GAS ODOR OR LEAK INSIDE A BUILDING
	IF GAS ODOR OR LEAK IS DETECTED OUTSIDE THE BUILDING

	SHELTER-IN-PLACE PROCEDURES
	Why You Might Need to Shelter-In-Place
	Following Are Actions to Follow at Your Worksite:
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan


	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions Policies and Procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section E: Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils - Ed Code 49079
	Part 1: Notifying Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

	Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079
	Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079
	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Part 1: General Information

	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Part 2: Sexual Harassment – All Personnel

	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Part 3: Sexual Harassment – Students

	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Section G: School Dress Code, if it exists.  CA Ed Code: Sections 32280-32289
	Part 1: Non-classroom based program does not have a dress code.

	Section H: Safe Ingress and Egress
	Part 1: General Information
	Part 2: Safe Ingress and Egress

	Section I: Bullying and Intimidation
	Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

	Section K: Crime Assessment
	Part 1: Crime Assessment


	ADPC37B.tmp
	PAYROLL ADVANCE POLICY
	POLICY BRIEF AND PURPOSE
	SCOPE
	POLICY ELEMENTS
	CONDITIONS FOR REQUESTING A PAYROLL ADVANCE
	PAYROLL ADVANCE TERMS
	PAYROLL ADVANCE AGREEMENTS


	Clarksville_Financial Package_May 2020.pdf
	20.05_INSPV_Board Presentation
	Clarksville Charter School
	CLARKSVILLE - Highlights
	CLARKSVILLE - Enrollment
	CLARKSVILLE - Revenue
	CLARKSVILLE - Expenses
	CLARKSVILLE - Fund Balance
	CLARKSVILLE - Cash Balance
	CLARKSVILLE - Compliance Reporting
	CLARKSVILLE - Compliance Reporting Cont. 
	CLARKSVILLE - Appendix

	FY20-Frcst-INSPV
	FY19-20

	20.05-INSPV-FSP
	BvA
	SoFP
	SoCF
	Check Register
	AP Aging
	Due to-from Summary


	FY21-Clarksville-Budget Presentation.pdf
	FY21-CV-Budget-Board Summary
	Clarkesville Charter School
	FY21 Budget Highlights
	Revenue
	Expenses
	Fund Balance
	Cash Balance
	Appendices

	FY21-Clarksville-INSPV- Budget-20.06.11
	FY20-21


	_Clarksville 2020-21 SA(update 06.18.20) (1).pdf
	18.  Field Trips

	ADP7430.tmp
	18.  Field Trips

	Clarksville May DTF Balance.pdf
	Due to-from Summary

	Clarksville_Financial Package_May 2020 (1).pdf
	20.05_INSPV_Board Presentation
	Clarksville Charter School
	CLARKSVILLE - Highlights
	CLARKSVILLE - Enrollment
	CLARKSVILLE - Revenue
	CLARKSVILLE - Expenses
	CLARKSVILLE - Fund Balance
	CLARKSVILLE - Cash Balance
	CLARKSVILLE - Compliance Reporting
	CLARKSVILLE - Compliance Reporting Cont. 
	CLARKSVILLE - Appendix

	FY20-Frcst-INSPV
	FY19-20

	20.05-INSPV-FSP
	BvA
	SoFP
	SoCF
	Check Register
	AP Aging
	Due to-from Summary

	Clarksville May DTF Balance.pdf
	Due to-from Summary



